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. T‘o ToWn CounCil and the CltiZens and Frikendsof SnrfsideBeach South 'Caroli‘na’} L

. The Comprehensrve Annual Fmancral Report of the' Town of Surfsule Beach for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007, is hereby submrtted for your review and mformatlon and to meet the requlrements of :
‘ South Carolma Law. : ,

The responsrbllrty for the accuracy of all presented data, the completeness and the fairness of thef
‘presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Town. To the best of our knowledge and belief,
the information is accurate in all material respects and' is reported based on a comprehens1ve
‘ framework of internal controls that has been: estabhshed for thrs purpose. L

' The ﬁnanc1al statements of the Town of Surfside Beach consist only of all the departments and funds! :

~of the Town. There are no separate governmental units or agencies combined to form the reporting . -

: ;entrty since the Town is not financially accountable for any other separate organizations. The costof '
“internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits; the objective is to provide reasonable ratherr
than absolute assurance that the financial statements are free of any matenal misstatement. ’

" Harper, Poston, & Moree‘ P. A Certiﬁed Public Accountants, have issued an Unqualiﬁed opinion on
- the Town of Surfside Beach’s financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2007. The -
rndependent auditor’s report is located at the front of the. ﬁnan01al statement. section of this. report

g Generally accepted accounting pr1nc1pals requ1re management to provide a narrative 1ntroductron ,

.~ overview and analysis to the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and
. Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is desrgned to complement MD&A and should be read i in '
S CODJ unction wrth it. The Town’s MD&A begins on page 3. 4 ‘

Profile of the Government

The Town of Surfs1de Beach is located in the southeastem area of Horry County, between the Atlantlc
Ocean to the east, and the Intracoastal Waterway, six miles to the west. The northern municipal limits
~ of the Town are four miles south of Myrtle Beach, South Carolina, and approximately 20 miles from
. Conway, South Carolina, the county seat.  The town is two miles long and one mile wide and
- approx1mately 90 percent developed f : ' )

- The Town of Surfside Beach was 1ncorporated n 1964 and operates under the Counc1l forrn of .
\ government as authorrzed under State law Leglslatlve authorlty is vested in the Mayor and six councrl e

Dedzcated people provzdzng qualzty and responsrve serwce to our community..

g ’ pnnted on recycled paper s



‘members who are elected at large to serve four year overlappmg terms of ofﬁce T he Mayor is the
.presrdmg ofﬁcer of Town Councrl : L : et L :

The Councrl appomts an Admlnrstrator to serve as the chlef executrve and adrnmrstratrve ofﬁcer to
oversee the day-to-day operat1ons of the Town The Admmtstrator is responsrble for 1mplementmg :
the policies of Town Council. Four staff departments as31st the Admrmstrator Planmng, Bu1ld1ng
and Zoning, Fmance Pubhc Safety and Pubhc Work L ;;,,;_r N N S . :

The Town of Surfs1de Beach prov1des a full range of serv1ces 1nclud1ng pohce and ﬁre protection, -
sanitation’ service,: repair and malntenance of town roads and"'nfrastructure burldmg regulanon
plannmg, zonmg, code enforcement and recreatron e e SR

s ;The Town mamtams budgetary controls to ensure comphanc w1th legal provrs1ons embodred in the '

" “incorporated. Significant growth and development has

annual’ appropnated budget approved by Town Counc1l % vities o ‘_'e}neral Fund ‘Special .
Revenue Funds, and Enterprise: Fund.are’ 1ncluded in the . annual appropnated ‘budget, which ‘is

prepared using generally accepted accountmg prrncrples.(GAAP all matenal respects.. The level

‘of budgetary control, the level at_whrch expendrtures cannot;’legall xceed the appropnated amount ,
: 1s at the fund level All approprr ons: lapse at'the end of each year. e e

' Local Economy

| -_:The Town of Surf31de Beach has grown dramat1cally s1nce 1ncorp"q jon: ,.The-ZOjOO‘Census reported ~
that 4,425 permanent residents’ livedin ‘the Town; comparedf 0 just 880 when the: Town was

* :the last decade. ‘In addition;’ comrnerc1a development contmue
_ district along US Highway - l7 Business. - 1m0

- tourism mdustry as related busmesses pay a vast 'majon_
services to the resrdents The Town s beach locatlon ‘continues:
and redevelopment RNt P

nse'along the Town’ s:business
each 1s; heavrly dependent on-the .
he taxes’ ‘and’ fees used to provrde
‘promote tounsm related busmess

Tounsm South Carohna s largest 1ndustry 18 the element tha keeps the northern coastal area of the
State runmng in h1gh gear The Town. of Surfsrde Beach ltke the rest of Horry County. and much of
- Georgetown - County to the south, 1 dommated Mby tourls related businesses; whlch include
accommodations; food. and. beverage estabhshmen 8} retail; golf, amusement and water ‘parks, and:
~many other attractrons ‘The area’ supports numerous hve entertamment theaters that feature various,
~ miusical artists; comedlans, and Broadway-type shows Th ‘fTo'Wn currently has three major hotels,
- and scores of condominiums’ and second- home_;propertles of whlch most are low densny srngle—f'
famrly res1dences and classrﬁed trans1ent rentals SECH short term”entals to vrsrtors TR

_ The retail mdustry has expanded tremendously in recent years “due. to the advancement of tounsm
The South Strand area, in Wthh the “Town of Surfside: Beach is’ located offers everythmg from-
conventional malls- and outlets to. outdoor complexes that cornbme specralty shops and dining along
lakesides and waterways “The beaches in Horry and ( eorgetown countles account for more ‘than 40
,percent of the State s tounsm revenue ' S :

’The tounsm 1ndustry has contnbuted revenue to the Town of Surfs1de Beach through the collectron of
Hosprtahty fees and Accommodatlons taxes In the past ten years these specral revenues have
increased over $6OO thousand These fees can be used to cover costs relatmg to publrc safety due to

[ V5 PN g

1 place along the Town’s. oceanfront in



the high percentage of tourists in the area. During the past ‘ten years, the government’s expenses
relatrng to public safety have increased from 25% to 41% of total expendrtures as the demand for
~ servrce increases.

Business license. and permrt revenue have been a s1gn1ﬁcant revenue source over the past ten years
~duetoa growing population and the development of the beach area. Currently, business licensing and -
permitting have contributed 22% to general fund revenue. We are hopeful that property development
and new rental propertles will continue in the next years keep1ng our revenues consrstent h

Long-Term Fmancml Planmng j

‘ Unreserved undesrgnated fund balance in the ‘general fund stands at 49% of total general fund
revenues. Town Council has not set a policy guideline for budgetary and planning purposes. The
Town Council has de01ded to construct the stormwater improvements projects without incurring
additional debt. A 5 mill tax levy for stormwater improvements and undesrgnated fund balance
transfers have been used to fund the prOJ ect. The stormwater mrllage has a sunset provrsron and will
end in 2007. ‘

, Relevant Fmahcial Policies

The Town s investment pohcy is to minimize risks while mamtarnlng a competltlve yield on 1ts
- funds; accordmgly, cash available for investing during the year was invested in the State Local
Government Investment Pool and certificates of deposit. The State Local Government Investment -
Pool is a pool of funds belonging to partlclpatrng local governments and is managed by the State
"‘Treasurer These funds are invested in obligations of the United States and its agencies and in
repurchase agreements collateralized by US Government instruments. The Town maintains a

“central depository account” where the operatlng cash of all funds are pooled and ‘excess cash in this
*account is. 1nvested ata hrgher yield. : ‘

k The Town transfers most of its risk exposure related to tort, auto lrabrhty and property damage
‘ ;through insurance contracts with the South Carolina Munlcrpal Insurance Reserve Fund. Employee
benefits such as workers compensation and medical coverage are provided through contracts with the
‘South Carolina Municipal Insurance Trust and the South Carolina Local Government Assurance

‘ Group Unemployment coverage is through the South Carolina Employment Securrty Commrssron

Major Imtlatlves - Year in Review

The Town of Surfs1de Beach is experrencrng the results of several years of plannlng as it enters into

- an aggressive construction period. The stormwater project that was initiated in- 2001 1ncluded three. .

Stormwater Basins. - -Melody and Floral Basins have been completed, and the first five phases of the
Myrtle Basin are scheduled for completion in September of 2007. $1,600, 000 was identified in the
budget for stormwater with $700,000 allocated for the Myrtle Basin- with- Town Council recently
- approving an additional $300, 000 to continue 'the basin. The remaining $600,000 will be used to
begin dredging six of the nine lakes in town. These efforts will enhance the quality of life for the
crtrzens and those who visit the Town of Surfs1de Beach - :

The sidewalk along Hollywood Drive South has been completed and the conveyance is continuing
zalong Hollywood Drlve North from Surfsrde Drrve to 10" Avenue North The addrtronal sidewalk
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| w1ll enable tourists and res1dents to continue from South Hollywood Drive to North Hollywood Dnve
and access Fuller Park and the Horry County Public L1brary on Surfside Drive.

- Major Inltlatlves for the kFuture :

‘Town Council has approved staff to solieit Requests for Qualifications in order to hire an archltect to
design the new fire station in Town Currently, the existing structure is 1nadequate and below

- standard. Dunng a recent mrtlgatron project, the engineer documented the station would: not o

- withstand. winds in excess of 70 mph making the replacement of the fac1l1ty a pnonty The Fire
Statlon PI‘O_]eCt is estrmated to cost approxrmately $1 5M to $2M R

For the past SiX months town staff has been in transrtron A small reductron m staff and an
establrshed personnel evaluat1on system is antrc1pated to rernforce the efﬁerency of town government :

4 As the new Town Admlnrstrator my review: mdrcates the Town to be in sohd fmancral condrtron' ;
supported by an efficient staff : R

: Awards and Acknowledgments
" The Comprehens1ve Annual F1nanc1al Report has been prepared followmg the guldelmesf‘

recommended by the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United: States and
‘Canada. - The GFOA awards a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Flnancral Reporting to-

- those: governments whose annual financial reports are judged to conforim substantially with the high ~ =~
j standards of ! publrc ﬁnancral reporting, 1nclud1ng generally accepted accountmg prrncrples S

s promulgated by the Governmental Accountrng Standards Board

RN | The GFOA awarded a Certlﬁcate of Achrevement for Excellence in Flnancral Reportrng to the Town ,

~ of Surfside Beach for its comprehensrve annual financial report for the fiscal year ended March 31,
© 2006, which was the eighteenth consecutrve year the Town received the award. - A Certificate of

o ‘Ach1evement is valid for a period of one year only We belreve our current report continues to

,;conform to the Certrﬁcate of Achievement Program’ requ1rements and we are submrttrng it to GF OA -
to determme its e11g1b111ty for another certrﬁcate Clan : —

' The preparatron of the Comprehensrve Annual Frnanc1al Report ona trmely baS1s was made poss1b1e
- by the dedicated service of the Town’s auditing firm; Harper Poston, & Moree, P.A., as well as the

- finance department Each department member has our sincere apprecrat1on for contributions made in .

-~ the: preparatlon of this report. We also extend a ‘thank you to Surfsrde Beach Town Councrl for 1tsf ‘
support Wthh made the preparat1on of th1s report possrble el :

Res‘pectfully Submitted, -

Town Admlmstrator N ST . Finance Officér
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
1n Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Town of Surfside Beach
South Carolina

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
March 31, 2006

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

President

i i

Executive Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of Town Council
Town of Surfside Beach, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activity, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Surfside Beach,
South Carolina, as of and for the year ended March 31, 2007, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Town’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activity, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Surfside Beach, South Carolina, as of March 31, 2007,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 26,
2007, on our consideration of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. Thatreportis an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

-1-
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The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3-10 and 44-48
are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement
and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, individual fund financial
statement, other supplementary information, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The individual fund financial statement
and other supplementary information have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on them.

%/W//{)awz’a) ¢ /%‘“*/?’4 :

Harper, Poston & Moree, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Pawleys Island, South Carolina
September 26, 2007



TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Our discussion and analysis of the Town of Surfside Beach, South Carolina’s (the Town) financial
performance provides an overview of the Town’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.
Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter on page v and the Town’s financial statements, which
begin on page 11.

Financial Highlights

¢ The assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$13,227,051 (net assets). Of this amount, $5,886,163 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to
meet the Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The Town’s total net assets increased by $2,033,694. This is a result of an increase in net
assets of our business-type activity of $278,600, and an increase in net assets of our
governmental activities of $1,755,094.

e The Town’s total revenues amounted to $7,992,976 during the year ended March 31, 2007.
Revenues and transfers of governmental activities totaled $6,784,739, and revenues and
transfers of our business-type activity were $1,208,237.

e During the year ended March 31, 2007, the Town’s total expenses amounted to $5,999,282.
Expenses of governmental activities totaled $5,069,645, and expenses of our business-type
activity were $929,637.

o At March 31, 2007, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of
$7,365,182, an increase of $685,919 in comparison to the prior year.

o The increase in the Town’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was
$1,290,186 for governmental activities and $57,907 for our business-type activity.

e At year-end, the Town had $2,235,000 in outstanding general obligation bonds compared to
$2,555,000 last year, a decrease of 12.5%.

Using This Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The statement of net assets and the statement
of activities (on pages 11 - 13) provide information about the activities of the Town as a whole and present a
longer-term view of the Town’s finances. Fund financial statements start on page 14. For governmental
activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for
future spending. Fund financial statements also report the Town’s operations in more detail than the government-
wide statements by providing information about the Town’s most significant funds. The fiduciary fund financial
statement on page 26 provides financial information about an activity for which the Town acts as an agent on
behalf of the Town’s firemen. The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements
and begin on page 27. This report also contains other information in addition to the basic financial statements.



Reporting the Town as a Whole

Our analysis of the Town as a whole begins on page 5. One of the most important questions asked about the
Town’s finances is, “Is the Town as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The
statement of net assets and the statement of activities report information about the Town as a whole and about its
activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the
accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the
current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Town’s net assets and changes in them. You can think of the Town’s net
assets, which is the difference between assets and liabilities, as one way to measure the Town’s financial health,
or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Town’s net assets are one indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other non-financial factors, however,
such as changes in the Town’s property tax base and the condition of the Town’s infrastructure, to assess the
overall health of the Town.

In the statement of net assets and the statement of activities, we have divided the Town into two kinds of
activities:

o Governmental Activities - Most of the Town’s basic services are reported here, including
general government, public safety, street, intragovernmental maintenance, culture and
recreation and non-departmental. Property taxes, local accommodations taxes, business
license taxes, franchise taxes, hospitality fees and grants, finance the majority of these
activities.

e Business-Type Activity - The Town charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of
the cost of certain services it provides. The Town’s sanitation activities are reported here.

Reporting the Town’s Funds

Our analysis of the Town’s funds begins on page 8. The fund financial statements begin on page 14 and
provide detailed information about the funds, not the Town as a whole. The Town Council establishes funds to
help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for
using certain taxes, grants and other money. The Town’s two kinds of funds, governmental and proprietary, use
different accounting approaches.

o Governmental Funds - Most of the Town’s basic services are reported in governmental funds,
which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end
that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called
the “modified accrual basis of accounting”, which measures cash and all other financial assets
that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the Town’s general government operations and the basic services it
provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the Town’s programs.
We describe the relationship between governmental activities (reported in the statement of
net assets and the statement of activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation
following each governmental fund financial statement.

o Proprietary Fund - When the Town charges customers for the services it provides, these
activities are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the
same way that all activities are reported in the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities. In fact, the Town’s enterprise fund (a component of proprietary funds) is the same
as the business-type activity we report in the government-wide statements but provides more
detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for the proprietary fund.

4.



The Town as an Agent

The Town is an agent, or fiduciary, for certain funds held on behalf of the Town’s firemen. The fiduciary
fund financial statement can be found on page 26 of this report. We exclude this activity from the Town’s other
financial statements because the Town cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The Town is responsible
for ensuring that the assets reported in this fund are used for their intended purposes.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin on page 27.

Other Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required

supplementary information concerning budgetary information beginning on page 44. An individual fund
statement and other supplementary information can be found on pages 49 - 52.

The Town as a Whole

Condensed statements of net assets at March 31, 2007 and 2006 are shown below.

THE TOWN’S NET ASSETS
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activity Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Current and Other Assets $ 8,029,561 § 7,059,488 $ 366,661 $ 148,687 §$ 8,396,222 $ 7,208,175
Capital Assets (Net) 7.559.803 6.,577.976 410.834 352,927 7,970,637 6,930,903

Total Assets $15.589.364 $13.637.464 $ 777495 $ 501,614 $16,366,859 $14,139.078
Long-Term Liabilities $ 2,079,921 §$ 2,289,962 $ 17,885 $ 12,779 $ 2,097,806 $ 2,302,741
Other Liabilities 1,010,365 603,518 31,637 39.462 1,042.002 642,980

Total Liabilities $ 3.090.286 $ 2.893.480 $ 49,522 § 52.241 $ 3.139.808 $ 2.945.721
Net Assets:

Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt $ 5,393,676 $ 4,103,490 $§ 410,834 $§ 352,927 $ 5,804,510 $ 4,456,417

Restricted 1,536,378 1,558,229 1,536,378 1,558,229
Unrestricted 5,569,024 5,082,265 317,139 96.446 5,886,163 5.178.711
Total Net Assets $12,499.078 $10,743.984 $__ 727,973 $_ 449,373 $13,227.051 $11.193.357

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The
Town’s combined net assets at March 31, 2007 were $13,227,051, an increase of $2,033,694, or 18.1%, from a
year ago.



A portion of the Town’s net assets, 43.9%, reflects its investment in capital assets less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Town’s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town’s net assets, 11.6%, represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets in the amount of
$5,886,163 may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Consistent with the prior fiscal year, as of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town is able to report positive
balances in all categories of net assets, for both the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities.

Changes in the Town’s net assets during the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 follows. The Town’s 2006

Changes in Net Assets have been restated from the prior year’s presentation. A comparative analysis will be
provided in future years for Building and Zoning expenses when prior year information is available.

THE TOWN’S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activity Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 650,123 $ 670,520 $ 1,141,924 § 925,145 $ 1,792,047 § 1,595,665
Operating Grants and

Contributions 83,425 52,633 83,425 52,633
Capital Grants and
Contributions 94,350 75,959 94,350 75,959
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 2,146,666 2,088,116 2,146,666 2,088,116
Local Accommodations
Taxes 136,914 116,393 136,914 116,393
Business License Taxes 1,331,700 1,192,406 1,331,700 1,192,406
Franchise Taxes 496,568 469,622 496,568 469,622
Hospitality Fees 674,718 615,341 674,718 615,341
Grants and Contributions
not Restricted to
Specific Programs 686,736 617,989 686,736 617,989
Investment Earnings 373,855 209,305 7,286 2,567 381,141 211,872
Gain on Disposal of
Capital Assets 29,494 7,551 75,675 11,820 105,169 19,371
Other General Revenues 63,542 63,542
Total Revenues $ 6,768,091 $ 6,115,835 $ 1224885 $_ 939,532 $ 7.992.976 $ 7.055.367
Expenses:
General Government $ 1,518,483 $ 1,095,556 $ $ $ 1,518,483 $ 1,095,556
Public Safety 2,015,991 2,072,616 2,015,991 2,072,616
Building and Zoning 238,278 238,278
Street 732,622 711,466 732,622 711,466
Culture and Recreation 479,222 398,886 479,222 398,886
Interest and Fiscal Charges 85,049 87,255 85,049 87,255
Sanitation 929.637 915,909 929.637 915,909
Total Expenses $ 5,069,645 $ 4,365,779 $__929.637 $___915,909 $ 5,999,282 $ 5.281.688
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THE TOWN’S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (continued)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activity Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Increase in Net Assets

Before Transfers $ 1,698,446 $ 1,750,056 $ 295248 §$ 23,623 § 1,993,694 $ 1,773,679
Transfers 16,648 9.618 (16.648) (9.618)
Increase in Net Assets 1,715,094 1.759.674 278,600 14,005 1.993.694 1,773,679
Net Assets - Beginning $10,743,984 $ 9,040,523 $ 449373 $ 441,008 $11,193,357 § 9,481,531
Adjustment to Beginning

Net Assets — (Note 14) 40,000 (56,213) (5,640) 40,000 (61,853)
Net Assets — Beginning,

as Restated $10.783.984 $ 8.984.310 $_ 449,373 $ 435368 $11,233.357 $ 9.419.678
Net Assets - Ending $12.499.078 $10,743.984 $_ 727,973 $_ 449373 $13.227.051 $11,193.357

The Town’s total revenues amounted to $7,992,976 for the year ended March 31, 2007. This is an increase of
$937,609. The total cost of all programs and services was $5,999,282 (increasing by $717,594).

Governmental Activities

The Town’s net assets from governmental activities increased $1,715,094, accounting for 86.3% of the total
growth in net assets of the Town. Unrestricted net assets, the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-
day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation or other legal requirements,
increased from $5,082,265 at March 31, 2006 to $5,569,024 at the end of this year.

The Town’s programs for governmental activities include general government, public safety, building and
zoning, street, culture and recreation, and interest and fiscal charges. Total revenues from the Town’s
governmental activities increased by 10.6% or $652,256, while total expenses increased 16.1% or $703,866. The
revenue improvements were mainly attributable to business license taxes of $139,294 and investment earnings of
$164,550. General government expenses increased $422,927. This increase is attributable to salaries and benefits
and unanticipated professional services of $96,000.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $5,069,645. However, as shown in the statement of
activities beginning on page 12, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities was only
$4,241,747 because some of the cost was paid by those who directly benefited from the programs ($650,123) or
by other governments and organizations that subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions
($177,775). Overall, the Town’s governmental program revenues were $827,898. The Town paid for the
remaining “public benefit” portion of governmental activities with general revenues and transfers from the
business-type activity, some of which could only be used for certain programs, totaling $5,956,841.

Business-Type Activity

The Town’s business-type activity relates to the provision of sanitation collection services to the residents and
businesses of the Town. The Town’s net assets from our business-type activity increased $278,600, which
accounts for 13.7% of the total increase in the Town’s net assets. The positive change in net assets is due to the
increase in charges from services, a larger customer base, an increase in fees for residential and summer service,
and the introduction of winter service. Also contributing is the gain on disposal of capital assets. Total revenues
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from the Town’s business-type activity increased by $285,353 while expenses remained relatively unchanged,
increasing by $13,728.

The cost of our business-type activity this year was $929,637. As shown in the statement of activities which
starts on page 12, the amounts paid by users was $1,141,924, a gain on the sale of capital assets totaled $75,675,
investment earnings were $7,286 and transfers out totaled $16,648.

The Town’s Funds

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town’s financing requirements. In
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of
$7,365,182, an increase of $685,919 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 98.8% of this total
($7,272,110) constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the Town’s discretion. The
remainder of fund balance is reserved for amounts that (a) are not available for spending or (b) are legally
restricted for a specific purpose.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved
fund balance of the General Fund was $4,317,093, while total fund balance amounted to $4,410,165. General
Fund’s total fund balance increased by $154,023 during the current fiscal year. The increase is directly
attributable to increased business license revenue, favorable interest rates, and the sale of capital assets.

In the Accommodations Tax Fund, fund balance decreased by $122,477 to $799,171 at year-end. The fund
balance decreased due to funds payable to the Horry County Treasurer for beach renourishment of $194,040.
Town Council has designated fund balance in the amount of $799,171 for beach renourishment.

Total fund balance of the Hospitality Fund was $669,089 at March 31, 2007, an increase of $73,259 from the
prior year. Of this total, Town Council has designated $7,217 for the veteran’s memorial.

In the Local Accommodations Tax Fund, fund balance increased by $22,980 to $28,769 at March 31, 2007.

The Capital Projects Fund has a fund balance of $1,427,988 at year-end, an increase of $558,134 from the
prior year as a result of unexpended budgeted projects. Town Council has designated the entire fund balance for
storm water management projects.

Proprietary Fund

The Town’s proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Sanitation Fund at year end amounted to $317,139.
The increase in net assets of the Sanitation Fund was $278,600 due to an increase in customers and rates.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The original budget was amended during the year. Revenues available for appropriation were $616,701 above
the budgeted amounts. The most significant positive variances are attributable to property taxes ($110,606),
licenses and permits ($104,905), and other revenue ($237,306) of which 59% is attributable to interest earnings.

_8-



The actual charges to appropriations (expenditures) were $354,802 below the budgeted amounts. The most
significant positive variances occurred in public safety ($108,674), and general government ($93,476) functions.
In both cases the variance is due to unfilled budgeted staff positions.

During the year, there was a $508,500 increase in appropriations between the original and final budget. The
main component of this increase ($374,000) was supplemental appropriations for capital outlay, primarily for the

purchase of land.

Budget to actual comparisons for the General Fund can be found on page 44.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The Town’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of March 31,
2007 amounted to $7,970,637, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes land
and improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery, equipment, vehicles and infrastructure. The total
increase in the Town’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $981,827, or 14.9%, for
governmental activities and $57,907, or 16.4%, for our business-type activity.

THE TOWN’S CAPITAL ASSETS
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activity Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Land $ 2,281,527 $ 1,694,393 $ $ $ 2,281,527 $ 1,694,393
Land Improvements 436,354 367,710 436,354 367,710
Buildings and

Improvements 988,712 998,128 6,398 8,418 995,110 1,006,546
Machinery, Equipment

and Vehicles 1,229,852 1,159,897 404,436 344,509 1,634,288 1,504,406
Infrastructure 2,426,545 2,251,887 2,426,545 2,251,887
Construction-in-Progress 196,813 105,961 196.813 105,961

$_7.559.803 $_6,577.976 $__ 410,834 $_ 352,927 $_7,970.637 $_6.930.903

More detailed information about the Town’s capital assets is presented in Note 8 to the financial statements.

Major capital asset additions during the current fiscal year included the following:

John Deer BackHoe $ 64,923
Public Works Department Shed 31,391
Land Purchase, Poplar and 1%, and Poplar and Surfside Drive 587,134
Sidewalk Project, Hollywood S. to Melody 93,435
Infrastructure, paving of eight (8) streets 254,176
2007 Sterling Rear Loader — Sanitation 117,159



Debt

At year-end, the Town had $2,235,000 in outstanding general obligation bonds compared to $2,555,000 last
year, a decrease of 12.5%. The town has entered into an agreement to purchase land for $375,000. At year-end,
the town had a short-term note payable outstanding, utilizing a 4.89% imputed interest rate, of $232,789.

THE TOWN’S OUTSTANDING DEBT
Bonds and Notes Payable

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activity Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
General Obligation Bonds $ 2,235,000 $ 2,555,000 $ $ $ 2,235,000 $ 2,555,000
Note Payable 232.789 232,789
Total Long-Term Debt $.2467,789 $.2,555,000 $ $ $.2.467,789 $.2.555.000

The Town maintains a credit rating of Aaa for general obligation bonded debt. Under current state statutes,
the Town’s general obligation debt issuances are subject to a legal limitation base of 8% of total assessed value.
General obligation debt issued pursuant to referendum is not subject to the limitations. As of March 31, 2007, the
amount of new debt, which could be issued without referendum, was $3,258,617.

Other long-term obligations of the Town include compensated absences. More detailed information about the
Town’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 10 to the financial statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The Town’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2008 budget,
tax rates and fees that will be charged for our business-type activity. Some of those factors are the economy, the
population growth rate, tourism trends and inflation rates.

These indicators were taken into account when adopting the General Fund budget for fiscal year 2008.
Revenues available for appropriation in the General Fund budget are $4,868,445, an increase of 10.6% over the
final fiscal year 2007 budget of $4,401,785. Property Taxes and favorable interest rates are expected to lead this
increase. The Town will use these increases in revenues to finance programs we currently offer and the effect that
we expect inflation to have on program costs. Budgeted expenditures are expected to rise to $5,211,846 from
$4,962,650 in fiscal year 2007. The Town has added no major new programs or initiatives to the fiscal year 2008
budget.

As for the Town’s business-type activity, the base rates for sanitation collection service for residential and

commercial customers for fiscal year 2008 will remain unchanged. The town began charging for winter service to
high-density rental customers in the fall of 2006, winter service rates are $6.00 per month per cart.

Contacting the Town’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with a general
overview of the Town’s finances and to show the Town’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Town’s Finance Department at
115 U.S. Highway 17 North, Surfside Beach, South Carolina 29575 or phone (843) 913-6111.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
March 31, 2007

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activity Total

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 7,470,007 $ 199,631 $ 7,669,638

Receivables (Net of Allowance) 367,517 153,050 520,567

Inventories 6,185 6,185

Prepaid Assets 77,538 13,980 91,518

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 59,160 59,160

Land and Construction in Progress 2,478,340 2,478,340

Other Capital Assets (Net) 5,081,463 410,834 5,492,297

Deferred Bond Issuance Costs (Net) 49,154 49,154
Total Assets $ 15,589,364 $ 777,495 $ 16,366,859
LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 291,975 $ 21,758  § 313,733

Accrued Salaries 62,731 62,731

Accrued Interest Payable 9,023 9,023

Deferred Revenues 108,000 108,000

Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets 59,160 59,160

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Due Within One Year 479,476 9,879 489,355
Due in More Than One Year 2,079,921 17,885 2,097,806

Total Liabilities $ 3,090,286 §$ 49,522 % 3,139,808
NET ASSETS

Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 5,393,676 § 410,834 $ 5,804,510

Restricted For Tourism Promotion and Support 1,527,029 1,527,029

Restricted For Drug Enforcement 6,816 6,816

Restricted For Victim Services 2,533 2,533

Unrestricted 5,569,024 317,139 5,886,163
Total Net Assets $ 12,499,078 $ 727,973 3 13,227,051

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 1,518,483 § 95,322 § $
Public Safety 2,015,991 223,656 23,791
Building and Zoning 238,278 271,658
Street 732,622 94,350
Culture and Recreation 479,222 59,487 59,634
Interest and Fiscal Charges 85,049
Total Governmental Activities $ 5,060,645 $ 650,123 $ 83,425 § 94,350
Business-Type Activity:
Sanitation $ 929.637 $ 1,141,924 $ $
Total $ 5,999,282 $ 1,792,047 3 83,425 $ 94,350

General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Local Accommodations Taxes
Business Licenses Taxes
Franchise Taxes
Hospitality Fees
Grants and Contributions not Restricted to Specific Programs
Investment Earnings
Gain on Disposal of Capital Assets
Other General Revenues
Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning
Adjustment to Beginning Net Assets (Note 14)

Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

-12-



Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activity Total

$ (1,423,161) $ $ (1,423,161)
(1,768,544) (1,768,544)
33,380 33,380
(638,272) (638,272)
(360,101) (360,101)
(85,049) (85,049)
$ (4,241,747) $ $ (4,241,747)
$ $ 212,287  $ 212,287
$ (4,241,747) $ 212,287 § (4,029,460)
$ 2,146,666 $ $ 2,146,666
136,914 136,914
1,331,700 1,331,700
496,568 496,568

674,718 674,718

686,736 686,736

373,855 7,286 381,141

29,494 75,675 105,169

63,542 63,542

16,648 (16,648)

$ 5,956,841 $ 66,313 $ 6,023,154
$ 1,715,094 § 278,600 $ 1,993,694
10,743,984 449,373 11,193,357
40,000 40,000

$ 12,499,078 $ 727,973 $ 13,227,051

-13-



TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables (Net):
Property Taxes
Hospitality Fees
Local Accommodations Taxes
Intergovernmental
Other
Inventories
Prepaid Assets
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
March 31, 2007

General Accommodations Hospitality
Fund Tax Fund Fund

$ 4,422,843 $ 793,807 $ 788,598
115,529

36,034

141,906 16,873

52,134 184 386
6,185
77,538
59,160

$ 4,875,295 § 810,864 § 825,018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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$

$

Local Capital Total
Accommodations Projects Governmental
Tax Fund Fund Funds
24919  $ 1,439,840  $ 7,470,007
115,529
36,034
3,752 3,752
158,779
98 621 53,423
6,185
77,538
59,160
28,769  $ 1,440,461  § 7,980,407
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
March 31, 2007
General Accommodations Hospitality
Fund Tax Fund Fund
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 249,880 $ 11,693  § 17,929
Accrued Salaries 62,731
Compensated Absences 6,054
Payable From Restricted Assets:
Bail Bonds 44,598
Drug Funds 14,562
Deferred Revenue 87,305 108,000
Total Liabilities 465,130  $ 11,693 § 125,929
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Inventories 6,185 $ $
Prepaid Assets 77,538
Drug Enforcement 6,816
Victim Services 2,533
Unreserved, Reported in:
General Fund:
Designated for Capital Replacements 707,927
Designated for Cash Flow Requirements 300,000
Designated for Emergencies 100,000
Designated for Land 208,947
Designated for Street Improvements 549,107
Undesignated 2,451,112
Special Revenue Funds:
Designated for Beach Renourishment 799,171
Designated for Veterans Memorial 7,217
Undesignated 691,872
Capital Projects Fund:
Designated for Storm Water Projects
Total Fund Balances 4410,165 $ 799,171  § 699,089
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 4875295 § 810,864 3 825,018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Page 2 of 2

Local Capital Total
Accommodations Projects Governmental
Tax Fund Fund Funds

$ $ 12,473  $ 291,975
62,731
6,054

44,598

14,562

195,305

$ $ 12473 § 615,225

$ $ $ 6,185
77,538

6,816

2,533

707,927
300,000
100,000
208,947
549,107
2,451,112

799,171
7,217
28,769 720,641

1,427,988 1,427,988
$ 28,769  § 1,427,988 § 7,365,182

$ 28,769  § 1,440,461  § 7,980,407
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
March 31, 2007

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Net Assets of Governmental Activities $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Franchise Taxes
Hospitality Fees
Local Accommodations Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Building and Zoning
Street
Intragovernmental Maintenance
Culture and Recreation
Non-Departmental
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Agent Fees
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Proceeds From Sale of Capital Assets
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Beginning Fund Balance, as Restated (Note 14)

Ending Fund Balance

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended March 31, 2007

General Accommodations Hospitality
Fund Tax Fund Fund
$ 1,900,456 $ $
496,568
674,718
1,603,205
200,389
323,562 484,524 38,175
494,306 48,091 44,394
$ 5018486 § 532,615  $ 757,287
$ 800,304 $ $
1,666,281 106,304 38,358
231,620
542,878 45,030 21,426
83,768
414,782 32,991
192,715 401,444 5,430
793,852 54,338 168,823
320,000
69,150
998
$ 5116348  § 607,116 § 267,028
$ (97,862) $ (74,501 § 490,259
$ 239976 § $
(47,976) (457,000)
11,909
$ 251,885  § (47,976) $ (457,000)
$ 154,023  $ (122,477) S 33,259
4,256,142 921,648 665,830
$ 4,410,165 3 799,171  § 699,089

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Local Capital Total

Accommodations Projects Governmental
Tax Fund Fund Funds

$ $ 238,432  § 2,138,888
496,568

674,718

136,914 136,914
1,603,205

200,389

846,261

1,066 51,228 639,085

$ 137,980 $ 289,660 $ 6,736,028
$ $ $ 800,304
1,810,943

231,620

37,684 647,018

83,768

447773

599,589

93,842 1,110,855

320,000

69,150

998

$ $ 131,526  $ 6,122,018
$ 137,980 $ 158,134  § 614,010
$ $ 400,000 % 639,976

(115,000) (619,976)
11,909

$ (115,000) $ 400,000 $ 31,909
$ 22,980 § 558,134  $ 645,919
5,789 869,854 6,719,263

$ 28,769  § 1,427,988 8 7,365,182
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 645,919

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of

activities the costs of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported

as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation

in the current period. 740,014

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of capital assets is reported, whereas
in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sales increase financial resources. Thus,
the change in net assets differs from the change in fund balances by the book value of the

capital assets sold. 9,024

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds. 7,778

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. 320,000

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental
funds. (7,641)

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 1,715,094

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
March 31, 2007

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables (Net):
Accounts
Other
Prepaid Assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Other Capital Assets (Net)

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Compensated Absences

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Sanitation
Enterprise
Fund

199,631

152,259
791
13,980

366,661

410,834

777,495

21,758
9,879

31,637

17,885

49,522

410,834

317,139

727,973



TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
Year Ended March 31, 2007

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel Service and Related Expenses
Maintenance and Service Contracts
Materials and Supplies
Repairs and Maintenance
Depreciation
Other Operating Expenses
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income
NONOPERATING REVENUES

Interest Earnings

Gain on Disposal of Capital Assets

Total Nonoperating Revenues

Income Before Transfers and Capital Contributions
Capital Contributions
Transfers Out
Change in Net Assets

Total Net Assets - Beginning

Total Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Sanitation
Enterprise
Fund

1,141,924

443,754
239916
35,571
1,430
91,104
117,862

929,637

212,287

7,286
75,675

82,961

295,248

7,081

(23,729)

278,600

449,373

727,973



TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Sanitation
Enterprise
Fund

CASH FLLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Customers $ 1,091,976

Payments to Suppliers (427,989)

Payments to Employees (436,104)
Net Cash and Cash Equivalents Provided by Operating Activities $ 227,883
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers Out $ (20,000
Net Cash and Cash Equivalents Used by Noncapital Financing Activities $ (20,000)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of Capital Assets $ (135,659)

Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets 65,675
Net Cash and Cash Equivalents Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities $ (69,984)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest Received $ 6,693
Net Cash and Cash Equivalents Provided by Investing Activities $ 6,693
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 144,592
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 55,039
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending $ 199,631

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash and
Cash Equivalents Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Income $
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash and
Cash Equivalents Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation

(Increase) in Accounts Receivable (Net)

(Increase) in Prepaid Assets

(Decrease) in Accounts Payable

(Decrease) in Accrued Salaries

Increase in Compensated Absences

(Decrease) in Due to Other Funds
Net Cash and Cash Equivalents Provided by Operating Activities $

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities

Contribution of Capital Assets from Government $
Transfer of Capital Assets to Government $
Capital Asset Trade-Ins $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Sanitation
Enterprise
Fund

212,287

91,104
(49,948)
(1,747)
(1,246)
(8,027)
6,554

(21,094)
227,883

7,081

3,729

10,000



TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
AGENCY FUND
March 31, 2007

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 44,307
LIABILITIES

Due to Town Firemen's Association $ 44,307

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Town of Surfside Beach, South Carolina (Town) was incorporated in 1964 as a municipal corporation and as
such possessed all the general powers granted by the Constitution and laws of South Carolina to municipal
corporations.

The Town operates under the Council-Administrator form of government. The Town Council is composed of six
members and the Mayor, who serves as presiding officer. The Town Council is the legislative body of the Town
and has the major responsibility of determining the policies and direction of the municipal government. The Town
Administrator is appointed by Town Council, and serves as the chief administrative officer of the Town. As such,
he administers the daily operations of the Town through appointed department heads.

The Town’s financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Town
applies all relevant GASB pronouncements. The Town is also required to apply, when applicable, Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on
or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Although the Town
has the option of applying FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type activity and enterprise
fund, the Town has chosen not to do so.

The more significant accounting policies of the Town are described below:
A. Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define the government, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all
potential component units; potential component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected
officials of the Town might be considered to be financially accountable. The decision to include a potential
component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GAAP, based on Statements
No. 14 of the GASB. The concept underlying the definition of the financial reporting entity is that elected officials
are accountable to their constituents; it follows that an accountability perspective should provide the basis for
defining the financial reporting entity. In accordance with that concept, the Town financial reporting entity consists
only of all of the departments and funds of the Town, the primary government; no other separate entities have been
included in the reporting entity (and these financial statements) because the Town is not financially accountable
for any other separate organizations, and there are no other organizations for which the nature and significance of
their relationship with the Town is such that exclusion would cause the financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete.

B. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Town’s government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities)
report information on all of its nonfiduciary activities. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, whichrely to a significant extent
on fees and charges for support.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include a) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit
from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and b) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other
items not properly included among programrevenues are reported instead as general revenues. Internally dedicated
resources are also reported as general revenues.

The government-wide financial statement focus is more on the sustainability of the Town as an entity and the
change in the Town’s net assets resulting from the current year’s activities.

C. Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the Town are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each fund
is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves,
fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification within

the financial statements. The Town uses the following fund types:

Governmental Funds

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement, in the fund statements, is upon determination
of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses and balances of financial
resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the Town’s governmental
funds:

1. General fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

2. Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

3. Capital projects fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition
or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by business-

type/proprietary fund).

Proprietary Fund

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in
net assets, financial position and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles
applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of
the proprietary fund of the Town:

1. Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is charged
to external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

secured by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of
providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c) establishes
fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to recover similar costs.

Fiduciary Fund

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore
are not available to support Town programs. The reporting focus is on net assets and changes in
net assets and is reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds.

The emphasis in the fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-type
activities categories. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentages of assets, liabilities,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses) for the determination of major funds.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Accommodations Tax Fund is a special revenue fund that is used to account for monies
received from the State, representing the Town’s share of special taxes collected on rentals of
transient accommodations, for the purpose of tourism related expenditures.

The Hospitality Fund is a special revenue fund that is used to account for a 1% fee imposed on
accommodations, paid places of amusement and food and beverages served by a food facility for
the purpose of beach maintenance, public beach accesses, transportation improvements, public park
facilities, and capital facilities and equipment necessary for the provision of public safety services.

The Local Accommodations Tax Fund is a special revenue fund that is used to account for a 2%
tax levied on rentals of transient accommodations for the purpose of tourism related buildings;
beach accesses and maintenance; highways, roads, streets and bridges; promotion of tourism; water
and sewer infrastructure; and the operation and maintenance of the above, including public safety
operations directly attendant to the facilities.

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities.

The Town’s major proprietary fund is as follows:

The Sanitation Fund is an enterprise fund that is used to account for the provision of sanitation
collection services to the residents and businesses of the Town.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Town’s agency fund is presented in the fiduciary fund financial statement. Since these assets cannot be used
to address activities or obligations of the Town, the agency fund is not incorporated into the government-wide
financial statements. The Town’s agency fund is as follows:

The Firemen’s Fund is used to account for resources held by the Town for its firemen in an agency
capacity.

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

The Town considers property taxes, franchise taxes, hospitality taxes, local accommodations taxes,
intergovernmental revenues and interest to be susceptible to accrual. Major revenues that are determined not to
be susceptible to accrual because they are either not available soon enough to pay liabilities of the current period
or are not objectively measurable include licenses, permits, fines and forfeitures.

E. Cash and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

Investments are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value of investments are included as a component of
investment income. The Town uses quoted market prices to determine the fair value of investments.

The fair value of the Town’s position in the South Carolina Local Government Investment Pool (SCLGIP) is the
same as the value of the pool shares. The SCLGIP is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission

as an investment company. The State Treasurer is responsible for oversight of the SCLGIP.

F. Receivables

Receivables are presented in the financial statements net of allowances for doubtful accounts. Allowances for
doubtful accounts are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of receivables.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

G. Interfund Activity

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Interfund activity is classified as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers.

Loans are referred to as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between governmental and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.” Services
provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses.
Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefitting fund and reduces its related
cost as areimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental
or proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

H. Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, primarily on a first-in/first-out (FIFO) basis. Inventories of governmental funds are
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

I. Prepaid Assets

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid assets
in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.

J. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets include cash and cash equivalents that are legally restricted as to their use. When both restricted
and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use restricted resources first, then
unrestricted resources as they are needed.

K. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., streets, drainage systems,
etc.), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Purchased capital assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs, which neither materially add to the value of an asset nor prolong its
life, are charged to expense as incurred. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of
business-type activities is reflected in the capitalized value of the assets constructed, net of interest earned on the
invested proceeds over the same period.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Land N/A
Land Improvements 20 -30
Buildings and Improvements 10 -40
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles 5-20
Infrastructure 20 - 30

The Town has elected not to retroactively report infrastructure acquired prior to April 1, 2003.

L. Compensated Absences

It is the Town’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits.
Unused sick leave may be accumulated to a total of ninety days. Upon separation from Town service or upon
accumulation of the maximum amount of sick leave, an employee is entitled to reimbursement on a one day for each
three days accumulated basis. Vacation and sick pay are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they
have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

M. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-
type activity or proprietary fund statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable premium or discount. Bond issuance
costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs are reported as debt service expenditures.

N. Equity Classifications

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, equity is classified as net
assets and is displayed in the following components:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Restricted Net Assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on their use by (a) third parties
such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments or (b) law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of restricted or invested
in capital assets, net of related debt.

In the governmental fund financial statements, equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is reserved for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted for a specific purpose. Designations of fund
balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

O. Revenues and Expenses

Real property and all personal property other than vehicles are assessed for property tax purposes as of January 1%
of each year. All taxable property is assessed in proportion to its value on that date. The basis for the value of
taxable property within the Town is taken from the records of the Horry County Auditor. Taxes are payable
between October 1% and January 15® following their levy on October 1*. The lien date is January 15" and unpaid
amounts after this date are considered to be delinquent and are subject to penalties for late payment.

New vehicle property taxes are assessed and levied within 120 days of the registration date of the vehicle and
payment is due upon receipt of the property tax notice. Other vehicle property taxes are assessed and levied in the
month the vehicle is scheduled for license renewal with the South Carolina Highway Department and payment is
due before the end of the month of the scheduled renewal.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Town’s proprietary fund are charges to
customers for services. Operating expenses include the costs of the services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, the Town recognizes grant revenues and receivables when the
applicable eligibility requirements, including time requirements, are met. Resources received before the eligibility
requirements are met are reported as deferred revenue.

Inproprietary fund financial statements, capital contributions, which consist of contributed capital assets and grant
revenues restricted to capital purposes, are reported as nonoperating revenues based on GASB Statement No. 33.

Note 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The governmental funds balance sheet is followed by a reconciliation between total fund balances - total

governmental funds and net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net
assets. The details of the element in the reconciliation that relates to long-term liabilities ($2,513,212) follows:
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

Note 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

Bonds Payable (Net) $  (2,215,281)
Note Payable (232,789)
Compensated Absences (105,273)
Accrued Interest Payable (9,023)
Deferred Bond Issuance Costs (Net) 49,154
Total $_ (2,513212)

The governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances is followed by a
reconciliation between net change in fund balances - total governmental funds and change in net assets of
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of the
reconciliation that relates to capital outlays ($740,014) is comprised of the following:

Depreciation Expense $ (367,828)
Capital Outlay 1,107,842
Total $ 740,014

Another element of the reconciliation that relates to expenses that do not require the use of current financial
resources ($7,641) is comprised of the following:

Compensated Absences $ 7,260
Accrued Interest (3,260)
Amortization of Bond Issuance Costs (8,308)
Amortization of Bond Premium 3,617
Amortization of Loss on Advance Refunding (6,950)
Total $ (7,641)

Note 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations
The legal level of budget control is at the fund level. Thus, expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations,

including supplemental appropriations, for an individual fund. For the year ended March 31, 2007, expenditures
did not exceed appropriations for any of the Town’s individual funds.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

B. Deficit Fund Equity

At March 31, 2007, none of the Town’s individual funds have fund equity deficits.
Note 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A. Deposits

At year end, the carrying amount of the Town’s deposits with financial institutions was $1,362,553 and the
corresponding bank balance was $1,538,971. Cash on hand was $1,200.

Custodial Credit Risk - For deposits, this is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town’s deposits might
not be recovered. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk, but follows the investment policy
statutes of the State of South Carolina. As of March 31, 2007, none of the Town’s bank balances were exposed to
custodial credit risk.

B. Investments

State statutes authorize the Town to invest in obligations of the United States and agencies thereof, general
obligations of the State of South Carolina or any of its political units, savings and loan associations to the extent
that the same are insured by an agency of the federal government, certificates of deposit where the certificates are
collaterally secured by securities of the type described above, or deposit accounts with banking institutions. The
statutes provide that all authorized investments shall have maturities consistent with the time or times when the
invested monies will be needed in cash. Statutes also allow the State Treasurer to assist local governments in
investing funds. The Town is under no contractual agreements that restrict investment alternatives.

As of March 31, 2007, the Town’s investments consisted solely of deposits with the South Carolina Local
Government Investment Pool (SCLGIP) in the amount of $6,409,352. 1t is the policy of the State Treasurer that
the weighted average maturity of the LGIP portfolio not exceed 60 days. For purposes of financial statement
presentation, funds deposited with the SCLGIP are classified as cash and cash equivalents.

Custodial Credit Risk - For investments, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Town
will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. Since deposits with the SCLGIP are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book-entry form,
they are not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Credit Risk - The Town’s investment policy requires that its portfolio consist largely of securities with top ratings
issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The Town’s investment in the SCLGIP was unrated.
Funds deposited into the State Treasurer’s investment pool are used to purchase: 1) direct obligations of the U.S.
government, 2) federal agency securities, 3) repurchase agreements secured by the U.S. government and/or federal
agency securities and 4) commercial paper rated A1/P1 (S&P/Moody’s highest rating).

Concentration of Credit Risk - The Town’s investment policy places no limit on the amount it may invest in any

one issuer. Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in external
investment pools are excluded from this disclosure requirement.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

B. Investments (continued)

Interest Rate Risk - The Town’s investment policy is to mitigate interest rate risk and ensure the preservation of
capital in the overall portfolio. The Town manages its exposure to declines in fair values by limiting the weighted
average maturity of its investment portfolio. Currently, the Town only invests in the external investment pool of
the State Treasurer that limits its weighted average maturity to 60 days or less.

Note 5 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at March 31, 2007, including applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Local
A-Tax Hospitality A-Tax
General Fund Fund Fund
Property Taxes $ 194323 §$ $ $
Hospitality Fees 36,034
Local Accommodations Taxes 3,752
Intergovernmental 141,906 16,873
Customer Accounts
Other 52,134 184 386 98
$ 388363 § 17,057  § 36,420 § 3,850

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (78.,794)
Net Receivables $___309.569 § 17,057 $ 36,420  $ 3.850

Capital

Projects Sanitation

Fund Fund Totals
Property Taxes $ $ $ 194,323
Hospitality Fees 36,034
Local Accommodations Taxes 3,752
Intergovernmental 158,779
Customer Accounts 153,059 153,059
Other 621 791 54,214

$ 621 § 153,850 $ 600,161

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (800) (79,594)
Net Receivables $ 621 $ 153,050 §___ 520,567
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

Note 5 - RECEIVABLES (continued)

On November 19, 2001, the Town entered into a sanitation collection billing agreement with Grand Strand Water
& Sewer Authority (GSWSA). The agreement requires GSWSA to administer the Town’s sanitation billing and
collection process. The Town is charged $1 per account each month for this service and receives the amounts
collected by GSWSA monthly.

Note 6 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates the (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system,
and (3) payments between funds are made. At March 31, 2007, there were no interfund receivables and payables
resulting from interfund transactions.

Transfers are used to move certain revenues to finance various program costs that the government must account for
in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, including administrative allocations. A schedule of
interfund transfers is as follows:

Transfers In Transfers Out
General Fund $ 239,976 $
Accommodations Tax Fund 47,976
Hospitality Fund 457,000
Local Accommodations Tax Fund 115,000
Capital Projects Fund 400,000
Sanitation Fund 23.729
Total $ 639,976 _$ 643,705

In the year ended March 31, 2007, the Town transferred Sanitation Fund capital assets with a net book value of
$3,729 to the General Fund. The net book value of the capital asset was reported as a transfer out in the Sanitation
Fund. Because governmental funds do not report capital asset activity, no corresponding entry was made to record
the contribution of the asset in the General Fund.

Note 7 - RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Town’s restricted cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following at March 31, 2007:

Governmental Activities:

General Fund:

Bail Bonds $ 44,598
Drug Funds 14,562
Total $ 59,160
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

Note 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The Town’s capital asset activity for the year ended March 31, 2007 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets not Depreciated:
Land

Construction in Progress

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Land Improvements
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles

Infrastructure

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land Improvements
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles

Infrastructure

Capital Assets (Net)

@®r A

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
1,694,393  § 587,134 $ $ 2,281,527

105,961 90,852 196,813
1,800,354 $ 677,986 $ $ 2.478.340

526,347 % 93,435 § $ 619,782
1,555,627 39,500 1,595,127
2,969,129 309,718 (157,372) 3,121,475
2,361,503 254.176 2.615.679
7.412.606 $ 696,829 $§ (157,372) $ 7,952,063
(158,637) $ (24,791) $ $ (183,428)
(557,499) (48,916) (606,415)

(1,809,232) (214,603) 132,212 (1,891,623)
(109,616) (79,518) (189,134)

(2.634,984) $ (367,828) $ 132,212 $ _ (2.870,600)
6.577.976 _ $ 1.006.987 $ (25.160) $ 7,559,803
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2007
Note 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings $ 20,200 $ $ $ 20,200
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles 844,281 145,659 (204,555) 785,385

$ 864,481 $ 145,659 § _ (204.,555) $ 805,585

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings $ (11,782) $ (2,020) $ $ (13,802)
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles (499,772) (89.,084) 207,907 (380,949
$ (511,554) $ 91,104y § _ 207907 $ (394.751)

Capital Assets (Net) $ 352,927 $ 54,555 $ 3352 % 410,834

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Town as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 143,962
Public Safety 141,946
Building and Zoning 2,452
Street 45,796
Culture and Recreational 33,672
Total $ 367.828

Business-Type Activity:

Sanitation $ 91,104
Total $ 91.104

Note 9 - DEFERRED REVENUE

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered
to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in
connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At March 31, 2007, deferred revenue is
comprised of delinquent property taxes receivable in the amount of $87,305 that are considered unavailable and
grant funds in the amount of $108,000 that are considered unearned.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

Note 10 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
A. Governmental Activities

At March 31, 2007, long-term debt of the Town’s governmental activities was as follows:

Original Interest Maturity
Issue Rate Date Outstanding
General Obligation Bonds:
Refunding Series 2004 $ 3,165,000 2.0-3.0% 3/1/13 $ 2,235,000
Note Payable $ 232,789 4.89% 11/30/08 $ 232,789

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the Town. The Town issues
general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. General
obligation bonds are to be repaid with property tax revenues.

In November 2006, the Town entered into an agreement for the purchase of land for $375,000. The Town paid
$125,000 down and executed a promissory note for the balance of $250,000. The note is a non-interest bearing
note, with annual payments of $125,000, that matures on November 30, 2008. The note has been recorded at the
present value of future cash flows, utilizing an imputed interest rate of 4.89%, which equals $232,789.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for all debt outstanding follows:

Principal Interest

Year Ending March 31, Bonds Notes Bonds Notes Total
2008 $ 330,000 $ 113,617 $ 62,750 $ 11,383 § 517,750
2009 345,000 119,172 54,500 5,828 524,500
2010 370,000 45,875 415,875
2011 375,000 35,700 410,700
2012 400,000 24,450 424,450
2013 415,000 12,450 427.450

Total $ 2,235,000 § 232,789 $ 235,725 § 17,211 $ 2,720,725
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

Note 10 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (continued)
B. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

The Town’s long-term liability activity for the year ended March 31, 2007 was as follows:

Due
Beginning Ending Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Bonds Payable:
General Obligation $ 2,555,000 § $ (320,000) $ 2,235,000 $ 330,000
Premium 25,017 (3,617) 21,400
Loss on Refunding (48,069) 6,950 (41,119)
$ 2,531,948 $ $ (316,667) $ 2,215,281 $ 330,000
Note Payable 232,789 232,789 113,617
Compensated Absences 119,912 60,451 (69,036) 111,327 35,859
Total $ 2,651,860 § 293,240 $ (385,703) $ 2,559,397 § 479,476
Due
Beginning Ending Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Business-Type Activity:
Compensated Absences §$ 21,210 % 27,500 $ (20,946) $ 27,764 $ 9,879

Other long-term liabilities, such as compensated absences, are generally liquidated by the General Fund and
Sanitation Fund.

Note 11- RETIREMENT PLANS
A. Plan Description

Town employees participate in either the South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System (PORS) or the South
Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) depending on their duties. Both plans are administered by the South Carolina
Retirement Systems and are classified as cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit public employee retirement
systems (PERS). Each plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Benefit provisions are established under authority of Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. The South
Carolina Retirement Systemsissue a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which discloses detailed information
regarding benefit provisions and actuarial information. That report is available to the public and may be obtained
by writing to South Carolina Retirement Systems, Post Office Box 11960, Capital Station, Columbia, South
Carolina 29211-1960 or by accessing their website at www.retirement.sc.gov.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

Note 11- RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

B. Funding Policy

Members of the PORS and SCRS are required to contribute at rates of 6.5% (members of the SCRS contributed at
6.25% through the quarter ended June of 2006) of their covered wages. The Town is required to contribute at
actuarially determined rates, currently 10.5% of PORS member wages and 8.2% (7.7% through June of 2006) of
SCRS member wages which includes group life contributions of .2% and .15%, respectively. The contribution
requirements of plan members and the Town are established and may be amended by the South Carolina Retirement
Systems. The Town’s contributions to the PORS for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 were
$126,245, $75,562, and $68,927, respectively. The Town’s contributions to the SCRS for the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 were $215,483, $113,237, and $95,822, respectively. The contributions made by
the Town to the PORS and SCRS, as shown above, were equal to the required contributions for each year.

Note 12 - RESK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. In order to protect against these losses, the Town
purchases insurance. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year. Settled
claims have not exceeded insurance coverage for the past three fiscal years ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005.
The Town also acquires insurance for job related injury and illness (workers’ compensation) for its employees.
Workers’ compensation is insured under a retrospectively rated policy where premiums paid are estimated
throughout the year and adjusted subsequent to the policy period based on actual experience.

Note 13 - LITIGATION AND CONTINGENCIES

The Town is a defendant in various lawsuits. The outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable; however,
the Town does not believe the settlement of these matters will have a material effect on the financial condition of
the Town. The Town also participates in federal and/or state assisted grant programs. These programs are subject
to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Any disallowed claims, including amounts
already collected, may constitute a liability of the Town. The Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Note 14 - NET ASSETS RESTATEMENT

During the current year, an error was discovered in reporting grant revenues of the prior period in the Hospitality
Fund. The effect of this error understated the changes in net assets of governmental activities and the change in
fund balances of governmental funds for the year ended March 31, 2006 by $40,000. This error was corrected by
restating the amount of governmental net assets and governmental fund balances as follows:

Governmental Governmental

Net Assets Fund Balances

As Originally Reported $ 10,743,984 $ 6,679,263
Unrecorded Grant Revenues 40,000 40,000
As Restated $ 10,783,984 $ 6,719,263
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007

Note 15 - NET ASSETS RESTRICTIONS

The Town has restricted net assets in the amount of $727,858, through enabling legislation, for tourism
development and support financed by its local hospitality and accommodations taxes.

Note 16 - CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

At March 31, 2007, the Town had one active construction project for the Myrtle Basin Watershed Drainage
Improvementproject. As of year end the Town has spent $29,900 in connection with this phase of the project and
has a remaining construction commitment of $678,889.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
Year Ended March 31, 2007

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Franchise Fees
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Building and Zoning
Street
Intragovernmental Maintenance
Culture and Recreation
Non-Departmental
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Agent Fees
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Proceeds From Sale of Capital Assets
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

&

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
1,789,850 $ 1,789,850 $ 1,900,456 $ 110,606
439,515 439,515 496,568 57,053
1,498,300 1,498,300 1,603,205 104,905
132,000 132,000 200,389 68,389
285,120 285,120 323,562 38,442
257,000 257,000 494,306 237,306
4401,785 $ 4,401,785 $ 5,018,486 § 616,701
804,280 $ 893,780 $ 800,304 $ 93,476
1,759,955 1,774,955 1,666,281 108,674
302,225 302,225 231,620 70,605
542,505 572,505 542,878 29,627
89,485 89,485 83,768 5,717
408,430 408,430 414,782 (6,352)
187,620 187,620 192,715 (5,095)
477,500 851,500 793,852 57,648
320,000 320,000 320,000
69,150 69,150 69,150
1,500 1,500 998 502
4962650 $ 5471,150 $ 5,116,348 § 354,802
(560,865) $ (1,069,365) $ (97,862) $ 971,503
230,000 $ 230,000 $ 239,976 $ 9,976
3,000 3,000 11,909 8,909
233,000 $ 233,000 $ 251,885 § 18,885
(327,865) $  (836,365) $ 154,023 § 990,388
4,256,142 4,256,142 4,256,142
3,928277 $ 3,419,777 $ 4,410,165 § 990,388
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ACCOMMODATIONS TAX FUND
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental 385,000 $ 385,000 $ 484,524 99,524
Other 20,000 20,000 48,091 28,091
Total Revenues 405,000 $ 405,000 $ 532,615 127,615
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Safety 110,000 $ 110,000 $ 106,304 3,696
Street 20,000 50,000 45,030 4,970
Non-Departmental 168,000 406,000 401,444 4,556
Capital Outlay 19,000 52,000 54,338 (2,338)
Total Expenditures $ 317,000 $ 618,000 $ 607,116 $ 10,884
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures $ 88,000 $  (213,000) $ (74,501) $ 138,499
OTHER FINANCING (USES)

Transfers Out $ (43,000) $ (43,000) $ (47,976) $ (4,976)
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 45,000 $  (256,000) $  (122,477) $ 133,523
Fund Balances - Beginning 921,648 921,648 921,648
Fund Balances - Ending $ 966,648 $ 665,648 $ 799,171 $ 133,523
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
HOSPITALITY FUND
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Hospitality Fees $ 625,000 $ 625,000 $ 674,718 § 49,718
Intergovernmental 38,175 38,175
Other 25,000 25,000 44,394 19,394
Total Revenues $ 650,000 $ 650,000 $ 757,287 $ 107,287
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Safety $ 27,000 $ 51,000 $ 38,358 § 12,642
Street 230,000 230,000 21,426 208,574
Culture and Recreation 53,000 53,000 32,991 20,009
Non-Departmental 15,000 15,000 5,430 9,570
Capital Outlay 55,000 174,000 168,823 5,177
Total Expenditures $ 380,000 $ 523,000 $ 267,028 $ 255,972
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures $ 270,000 $ 127,000 $ 490,259 $ 363,259
OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers Out $  (457,000) $  (457,000) $  (457,000) §
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (187,000) $  (330,000) $ 33,259 §$ 363,259
Fund Balances - Beginning 625,830 625,830 625,830
Adjustment to Beginning Fund Balances 40,000 40,000 40,000
Fund Balances - Ending $ 478,830 $ 335,830 $ 699,089 $ 363,259
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES
Local Accommodations Taxes
Other
Total Revenues

OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers Out

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

LOCAL ACCOMMODATIONS TAX FUND
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Variance With
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 110,000 $ 110,000 $ 136,914 § 26,914
1,066 1,066
$ 110,000 $ 110,000 $ 137,980 $ 27,980
$  (110,000) $  (120,000) $  (115,000) § 5,000
$ $  (10,000) $ 22,980 $ 32,980
5,789 5,789 5,789

$ 5,789 § (4211) $ 28,769 $ 32,980
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
March 31, 2007

Note 1 - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The Town utilizes the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

1.

6.

Prior to March 1%, the Town Administrator submits to Town Council a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing April 1*. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comment.

Prior to March 31, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

The Town Administrator is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within
any fund; however, revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by
Town Council. Thus, the legal level of control is at the fund level.

The Town employs formal budgetary integration as a management control device during the year
and generally adopts an annual appropriated budget for all funds other than fiduciary funds. The

budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

Appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

Note 2 - SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS

The legal level of budget control is at the fund level. Thus, expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations,
including supplemental appropriations, for an individual fund. For the year ended March 31, 2007, expenditures
did not exceed appropriations for any of the Town’s individual funds. Supplemental funds were appropriated for
expenditures during the year ended March 31, 2007 as follows:

General Fund $ 508,500
Accommodations Tax Fund 301,000
Hospitality Fund 143,000
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIREMEN'S FUND
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 59,999 $ 34484 $ 50,176 $ 44,307
LIABILITIES
Due to Town Firemen's Association 3 59,999 § 34,484 $ 50,176 $ 44 307
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Street
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 225,900 $ 225,900 $ 238,432 12,532
10,000 10,000 51,228 41,228
$ 235900 $ 235,900 $ 289,660 53,760
$ 75,000 3 75,000 $ 37,684 37,316
1,300,000 200,000 93,842 106,158
$ 1,375,000 $ 275,000 $ 131,526 143,474
$ (1,139,100) $ (39,100) $ 158,134 197,234
$ 400,000 $ 400,000 $ 400,000
$  (739,100) $ 360,900 § 558,134 197,234
869,854 869,854 869,854
$ 130,754 $ 1,230,754 $ 1,427,988 197,234
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SANITATION FUND
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Variance With

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 1,098,620 $ 1,098,620 $ 1,141,924 § 43,304
Total Revenues $ 1,098,620 $ 1,098,620 $ 1,141,924 § 43,304
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel Service and Related Expenses 468,800 $ 468,800 § 443754 $ 25,046
Maintenance and Service Contracts 235,000 235,000 239,916 (4,916)
Materials and Supplies 43,900 43,900 35,571 8,329
Repairs and Maintenance 2,500 2,500 1,430 1,070
Depreciation 100,000 100,000 91,104 8,896
Other Operating Expenses 111,950 111,950 117,862 (5,912)
Total Operating Expenses $ 962,150 $ 962,150 § 929,637 $ 32,513
Operating Income (Loss) $ 136,470 $ 136,470 $ 212287 § 75,817
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Intérest Earnings $ 2,500 $ 2,500 § 7,286 § 4,786
Gain on Disposal of Capital Assets 75,675 75,675
Total Nonoperating Revenues $ 2,500 $ 2,500 $ 82,961 $ 80,461
Income (Loss) Before Transfers
and Capital Contributions $ 138970 §$ 138,970 $ 295248 $ 156,278
Capital Contributions 7081 7,081
Transfers Out (20,000) (20,000) (23,729) (3,729)
Change in Net Assets $ 118,970 §$ 118,970 $ 278,600 $ 159,630
Total Net Assets - Beginning 449,373 449,373 449,373
Total Net Assets - Ending $ 568,343 §$ 568,343 $ 727,973 $ 159,630
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINES, ASSESSMENTS AND SURCHARGES
Year Ended March 31, 2007

COURT FINES
Court Fines Collected
Court Fines Retained by Town
Court Fines Remitted to the State Treasurer

COURT ASSESSMENTS
Court Assessments Collected
Court Assessments Retained by Town
Court Assessments Remitted to the State Treasurer

COURT SURCHAGES
Court Surcharges Collected
Court Surcharges Retained by Town
Court Surcharges Remitted to the State Treasurer

COURT DPS PULLOUTS
Court DPS Pullouts Collected
Court DPS Pullouts Retained by Town
Court DPS Pullouts Remitted to the State Treasurer

VICTIMS SERVICES
Court Assessments Allocated to Victim Services
Court Surcharges Allocated to Victim Services
Total Funds Allocated to Victim Services
Victim Services Expenditures
Funds Available for Carryforward
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147,651
(147,651)

149,851
(17,027)
132,824

64,611

(11,452)
53,159

6,572

6,572

17,027
11,452
28,479
(25,946)
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Town of Surfside Beach’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures,
and required supplementary information says about the government’s overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
government’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 53-60

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government’s
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 61-64

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the government’s current levels of outstanding debt and the government’s
ability to issue additional debt in the future. 65-68

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the government’s financial activities
take place. 69-70

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the government’s financial report relates to
the services the government provides and the activities it performs. 71-73

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports for the relevant year.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Local Business
Fiscal Property Accomodations  Licenses Franchise Hospitality
Year Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Fees Total
1998 $
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004 1,919,558 97,211 944,899 463,956 560,257 3,985,881
2005 1,979,199 106,475 1,018,750 446,194 588,603 4,139,221
2006 2,088,116 116,393 1,192,406 469,622 615,341 4,481,878
2007 2,146,666 136,914 1,331,700 496,568 674,718 4,786,566

Note: The Town of Surfside Beach is retroactively reporting data back to the year of GASB Statement 34
implementation, which was fiscal year ending 2004. Information on the collection of taxes by full accrual
accounting is not available prior to that fiscal year.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Local Business

Fiscal Property Accomodations  Licenses Franchise Hospitality

Year Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Fees Total
1998 $ 1,524824 § $ 697,613 §$ 354,371 389,945 § 2,966,753
1999 1,557,105 881,536 367,534 428,461 3,234,636
2000 1,498,268 853,703 361,779 450,204 3,163,954
2001 1,494,180 891,821 389,423 475,182 3,250,606
2002 1,503,677 1,046,050 404,842 498,807 3,453,376
2003 1,549,091 70,790 1,078,292 411,069 523,223 3,632,465
2004 1,904,727 97,211 944,899 463,956 560,257 3,971,050
2005 1,977,665 106,475 1,018,750 446,194 588,603 4,137,687
2006 2,089,430 116,393 1,192,406 469,622 615,341 4,483,192
2007 2,138,888 136,914 1,331,700 496,568 674,718 4,778,788
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

March 31, 2007
2007 1998
Percentage of Percentage of
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value

Verizon South, Inc. $ 484,270 1 1.01% $
Surfside Pier Hotel, Ltd. 433,542 2 0.90% 325,878 1 1.36%
Jefferson-Pilot Life Insurance 357,636 3 0.74%
Lodgian Hotels Fixed IV, LP 215,142 4 0.45%
Scalise Development, Inc. 202,005 5 0.42%
Bonnie Jean Hammond-Robinson 175,788 6 0.37% 106,824 6 0.45%
Deerfield GDS, LLC 167,208 7 0.35%
Scalise Properties, LLC 147,600 8 0.31%
RMP, LLC 146,640 9 0.31%
Hospital Corporation of America 135,900 10 0.28%
S.C. Lodging Association 290,592 2 1.22%
Sam Scalise 126,726 3 0.53%
David Tebele 119,376 4 0.50%
AHP Corporation 114,954 5 0.48%
Scalise Builders 86,826 7 0.36%
Deerfield Plaza GP, Inc. 77,142 8 0.32%
Great American Entertainment 69,402 9 0.29%
James Calhoun 66,168 10 0.28%

$ 513% § 1,383,888 5.79%

2,465,731

Source: Horry County Treasurer's Office.

UNAUDITED

-63-



QILIdAVNA

Mo, oy 10J JuaSe ue se soxe} Arodoid s)o07[00 oYM ‘Temnseal], Ajuno)) ALIOH S Aq papIAoId HOTBUIIOJUT UO PIseq St BJEp dA0GE o],

‘soporpaA Swpn[oxo ‘Ieak £q soxe) juonbur[op Jo wonoa[ed s13FAY (T)

-SJUSUIo}EqR PUE SATAS] Xe) [RUOTIPPE [[¢ AQ pajsnipe AAs] Xe) [ewrSTIO oY) sapnjour £A3] xe} [e)o, (1)

%0TS6 L80°906°1 %0C° 56 L80°906°T 161°700°C LO/1¢/E
%5926 I¥£990°C #9718 %10°68 LLOS86°T 8€T0€TT 90/1¢/¢
%S€T6 SSTTLET £68°98 %8T 88 01°688°1 20L°SETT S0/1¢e/¢
%8L06 0v0°LLST €L0°0L %6¢ L8 L96°908°T Tv9°L90°T P0/1¢/e
%6806 SLSTYS‘T v61°S6 %8T'S8 189°0%1°1 L1¥°969°1 €0/1¢/¢
%VL 98 LOLY8Y'] SLS‘LL %1TT8 TETLOV'T OTLTIL co/1¢/e
%L6°C8 1996811 0S8‘1L %LLT8 T18°C1v'1 6L6°8TLT 10/1¢/¢
%16'S8 L88 Y8V 885°C¢ %20'v8 66CT°TSY'] LSY'8TLT 00/1€/€
%6L°98 €ESers T 182°0¥ %¢eS 8 TSTE0ST 09%°8LLT 66/1¢/¢
%88°58 TSL605°1 8oy $ %1T°¢8 016°T9%°T 9G0°8SL°T $ 86/1¢€/€
Aa97J0 JUNOU Y (7) s1eo X AA9T JO junoury (1) Ano1 xE1, Popug
Rl h juonbasqng ur 98ejuanIag o], I3 X TBoSIq
9)e(] 03 SUOTIO9[[0)) T8I0, SUOT}I3[[0)) AAQT 9 JO T2 & [BIST
S} UMM PAJIIT[O])

SABIX [BISL] UDT, ISe]

SNOLLOATIOD ANV SHIATTXV.L ALJIdOdd

VNI'TOUVD HINO0S ‘HOVAI FAISTINS A0 NMOL

-64-



TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA

"RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities

General Total Percentage
Fiscal Year Obligation Note Primary of Personal Per

Ended Bonds Payable Government Income (1) Capita (1)

3/31/98 $ 4,495,000 $ $ 4,495,000 Unavailable 946
3/31/99 4,280,000 4,280,000 Unavailable 871
3/31/00 4,060,000 4,060,000 Unavailable 799
3/31/01 3,825,000 3,825,000 3.54% 864
3/31/02 3,580,000 3,580,000 331% 804
3/31/03 3,325,000 3,325,000 3.07% 740
3/31/04 3,165,000 3,165,000 2.93% 684
3/31/05 2,865,000 2,865,000 2.65% 597
3/31/06 2,555,000 2,555,000 2.36% 512
3/31/07 2,235,000 232,789 2,467,789 2.28% 476

Note: Details regarding the Town's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(1) See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percentage of

Estimated
General Less: Amounts Actual Taxable

Fiscal Obligation Available in Debt Value of Per

Year Bonds Service Fund Total Property (1) Capita (2)
3/31/98  § 4,495,000 §$ $ 4,495,000 1.15% $ 946
3/31/99 4,280,000 4,280,000 1.07% 871
3/31/00 4,060,000 4,060,000 0.75% 799
3/31/01 3,825,000 3,825,000 0.67% 864
3/31/02 3,580,000 3,580,000 0.62% 804
3/31/03 3,325,000 3,325,000 0.59% 740
3/31/04 3,165,000 3,165,000 0.53% 684
3/31/05 2,865,000 2,865,000 0.46% 597
3/31/06 2,555,000 2,555,000 0.31% 512
3/31/07 2,235,000 2,235,000 0.27% 431

Notes: Details regarding the Town's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
(1) See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property for property value data.

(2) Population data can be found in the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics.

UNAUDITED
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

MARCH 31, 2007
Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable (1) Debt

Debt repaid with property taxes: County $ 57,860,000 3.24% $ 1,874,664
Debt repaid with property taxes: School District 290,640,000 3.24% 9,416,736
Subtotal, overlapping debt 11,291,400
Town of Surfside Beach Direct Debt 2,235,000
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 13,526,400

Source: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Horry County Treasurer's
Office. Debt outstanding provided by the Finance Departments of Horry County and the Horry County School
District. Data for overlapping jurisdictions reports amounts outstanding at June 30, 2006.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the city.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the
residents and businesses of the Town of Surfside Beach. This process recognizes that, when considering the
government's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses
should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore
responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.

(1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable
percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the County and School District's taxable assessed value

that is within the government's boundaries and dividing it by the County and School District's total taxable
assessed value.

UNAUDITED
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
Current and Nine Years Ago

2007 1998

Percentage of Percentage of

Total Town Total Town

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

Lodgian Hotels 105 1 Unavailable Unavailable 1 Unavailable
BiLo 98 2 Unavailable Unavailable 2 Unavailable
Crabby Mike's 90 3 Unavailable Unavailable 3 Unavailable
Town of Surfside Beach 78 4 Unavailable Unavailable 4 Unavailable
Piggly Wiggly 74 5 Unavailable Unavailable 5 Unavailable
Onstage Entertainment 70 6 Unavailable Unavailable 6 Unavailable
Surfside Realty Co, Inc. 66 7 Unavailable Unavailable 7 Unavailable
Days Inn Surfside Beach 62 8 Unavailable Unavailable 8 Unavailable
Original Benjamin's Calabash 45 9 Unavailable Unavailable 9 Unavailable
Lanes's Pest Elimination 44 10 Unavailable Unavailable 10 Unavailable
732 Unavailable Unavailable Unavailable

Source: Finance department and each employer.

UNAUDITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ OTHER
REPORT SECTION






H s
AIi)PER e

OSTON &
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Certified Public Accountants
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Robert D. Harper, Jr. CPA Robin B. Poston CPA
Stacey C. Moree CPA P. 0. Box 576
P. O. Box 1550 307 Church Street
106 Wall Street, Litchfield Georgetown, SC 29442
Pawleys Island, SC 29585 Tel (843) 527-3413
Tel (843) 237-9125 INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT Fax (843) 546-7277
Fax (843) 237-1621 ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

E-mail: HPM@sc.recom AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of Town Council
Town of Surfside Beach, South Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activity, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Surfside Beach, South Carolina
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2007, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated September 26, 2007. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Town’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant
deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies,
that adversely affects the Town’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial datareliably
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood
that a misstatement of the Town’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be
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prevented or detected by the Town’s internal control. We consider the deficiencies 07-B1,07-B2,and 07-B3,
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses, to be significant deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented
or detected by the Town’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control
that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant
deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe that none of the
significant deficiencies described above is a material weakness.

Compliance And Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

The Town’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses. We did not audit the Town’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization,

Town Council, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

K/%/ Parto ;‘///m.-_, 7 A

Harper, Poston & Moree, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Pawleys Island, South Carolina
September 26, 2007
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Summary of Audit Results

L.

2.

9.

The auditor’s report expresses unqualified opinions on the basic financial statements.

Three control deficiencies were disclosed during the audit of the basic financial statements.
These deficiencies are not reported as material weaknesses.

No instances of noncompliance were disclosed during the audit of the basic financial
statements.

The Town did not fall under the requirements of OMB Circular A-133; therefore, no control
deficiencies were disclosed for major federal award programs.

The Town did not fall under the requirements of OMB Circular A-133; therefore, no
auditor’s report on compliance for major federal award programs was issued.

The Town did not fall under the requirements of OMB Circular A-133; therefore, no audit
findings relative to major federal award programs are disclosed in the following schedule.

No federal award programs were tested as major programs.

The Town did not fall under the requirements of OMB Circular A-133; therefore, there was
no threshold for distinguishing between Types A and B programs.

Risk relative to major federal award programs was not required to be assessed.

Findings - Financial Statement Audit

07-B1 Financial Statement Preparation

Control Deficiency: The Town’s accounting staff does not prepare its financial statements and
related note disclosures.

Criteria: Controls over the preparation of financial statements are necessary in preventing and
detecting misstatements that could occur in the financial statements.

Cause: Town personnel do not possess the technical skills necessary to prepare the financial
statements and related note disclosures.

Effect: Errors or misstatements could occur and not be detected by management.

Recommendation: Management should take steps toward gaining the experience needed to prepare
financial statements presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Findings - Financial Statement Audit (continued)

07-B1 Financial Statement Preparation (continued)

Management’s Response: Town management was in a transition period during this year’s audit.
Although we did not prepare the financial statements, we reviewed and approved them prior to
issuance to ensure every possible step was taken to detect misstatements. Town management will
make every attempt to correct this deficiency.

07-B2 Capital Assets

Control Deficiency: Capital asset transactions are not properly reported on the capital assets
inventory and reconciled to the accounting records.

Criteria: Accurate subsidiary schedules are an important management tool in maintaining control
over capital assets.

Cause: Staff error.

Effect: Improper valuation resulting in a misstatement of capital assets and related depreciation.
Recommendation: Management should performreconciliations between the capital assets inventory,
construction in progress activity, and the accounting records to ensure transactions are correctly
accounted for. Staff may consider consulting with an outside party when unusual transactions are

encountered.

Management’s Response: The Town has addressed this deficiency and will perform reconciliations
to ensure transactions are correctly accounted for.

07-B3 Grant Revenues

Control Deficiency: Grant revenues are not correctly recognized in the financial statements.
Criteria: Proceeds received for “expenditure-driven” grants should be recognized as revenues in the
period in which all eligibility requirements of the grant have been met and the revenues are available
to the Town.

Cause: Staff error.

Effect: Risk of financial statement misstatement due to improper revenue recognition of grant
revenues.

Recommendation: Management should maintain activity reports that track the status of grant
expenditures and reconcile them to the general ledger.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Findings - Financial Statement Audit (continued)
07-B3 Grant Revenues (continued)

Management’s Response: The Town’s grant function has been placed under the responsibility of the
Town Administrator. The Administrator will keep the finance department apprised of grant status.

Findings - Federal Award Program Audit

Not applicable.
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